OA 6-2-97 0-17

IN THE SUPREME COURT, STATE OF FLORIDA SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 89,124 THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CASE NO. 96-842

ILLINOIS INSURANCE EXCHANGE, an Illinois Corporation and BRITAMCO UNDERWRITERS, INC., and Illinois Corporation,

Petitioners,

vs.

SCOTTSDALE INSURANCE COMPANY a/s/o GAMEL PROPERTIES INC., d/b/a CARILLON RESORT and TIFFANY'S and CARYLANN HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. d/b/a CARILLON RESORT and TIFFANY'S,

Respondents.

MAR 27 1997

MAR 27 1997

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerk

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Plaintiff/Respondent SCOTTSDALE sued Defendant/Petitioner ILLINOIS for declaratory relief seeking reimbursement of moneys expended in defending and indemnifying the parties' mutual insured TIFFANY'S lounge. (R.44, pp. 1-41) According to SCOTTSDALE'S Complaint, four individuals, Francisco Francis, Mathew Goltzman, James Aranaez and Daniel Trujillo (hereinafter "claimants") were injured outside the premises of the lounge on August 8, 1987 after they had attended a fraternity party on the premises. (R.44, pp. 4-5) SCOTTSDALE defended the bar and settled the claims brought by the Plaintiffs and then sought to recover those sums expended from ILLINOIS. (R.44, pp. 7-8)

On the day of the incident, TIFFANY'S had in force a general premises liability policy with SCOTTSDALE and a liquor liability policy with ILLINOIS. (R.44, pp. 2-3) SCOTTSDALE'S policy provided, in pertinent part, that:

The company will pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the insured shall become legally obligated to pay as damages because of (a) bodily injury, or (b) property damage to which this insurance applies, caused by an occurrence, and the company shall have the right and duty to defend any suit against the insured seeking damages on account of such bodily injury or property damage, even if any of the allegations of the suit are groundless, false or fraudulent, and may make such investigation and settlement of any claim or suit as it deems expedient, but the company shall not be obligated to pay any claim for judgment or to defend any suit after the applicable limit of the company's liability has been exhausted by payment of judgment or settlements.

This insurance does not apply:

. . .

- (h) to bodily injury or property damage for which the insured or his indemnity may be held liable
- (1) as a person or organization engaged in the business of manufacturing, distributing, selling or serving alcoholic beverages or
- (2) if not **so** engaged, as an owner or lessor of premises used for such purposes, if such liability is imposed
- (i) by, or because of the violation of, any statute, ordinance or regulation pertaining to the sale, gift, distribution or use of any alcoholic beverage, or
- (ii) by reason of the selling, serving or giving of any alcoholic beverages to a minor or to a person under the influence of alcohol or which causes or contributes to the intoxication of any person: but part (ii) of this exclusion does not apply with respect to liability of the insured or his indemnity as an owner or lessor described in (2) above.

(R.44, p. 18) ILLINOIS' policy provided, in pertinent part, that:

The company will pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the insured shall become obligated to pay as compensatory damages (excluding punitive damages) because of injury to which this insurance applies, sustained by any person if such liability is imposed upon the insured by reason of: (1) causing or contributing to the intoxication of any person; (2) the furnishing of alcohol beverages to a person under the legal drinking age or under the influence of alcohol; or (3) any statute, ordinance or regulation relating to the sale, gift, distribution or use of alcoholic beverages, provided the activities described in (1), (2) and (3) above occur at the insured premises and provided the injury occurs after the retroactive date shown on the policy declarations and the claim is first made during the policy period and that written notice of the claim is reported to the company during the policy period. The company shall have the right and duty to defend any suit against the insured seeking such damages, even if any of the allegations of the

suit are groundless, false or fraudulent, and may make such investigation and settlement of any claim or suit it deems expedient, but the company shall not be obligated to pay any claim or judgement [sic] or to defend any suit after the applicable limit of the company's liability has been exhausted by payment or judgements [sic] or settlements.

(R.44, p. 55)

The claimants testified that they were all underage and had been served alcohol on the TIFFANYS' premises on the evening in question. (R.44, p. 49) The claimants also testified that they were not intoxicated after leaving the bar. (R.44, p. 49) SCOTTSDALE submitted no evidence to the contrary at the hearing on the Motions for Summary Judgment. (R.44, pp. 142-174)

According to the claimants, after they left TIFFANY'S and were walking to their car, a group of unknown individuals attacked them without provocation, resulting in a melee in which several individuals, including one of the assailants, were stabbed. (R.44, pp. 103, 120, 134) None of the claimants knew any of the assailants, nor did any of the claimants recall seeing any of the assailants in TIFFANY'S. (R.44, pp. 104-105, 122, 125, 134, 136)

The claimants' Complaint alleged, in pertinent part, that TIFFANY'S owed a duty to the claimants to exercise reasonable care to maintain its premises in a reasonably safe manner, including policing the premises to protect its patrons from assaults by other patrons.

(R.44, pp. 25-26) The Complaint further alleged that TIFFANY'S had an obligation and a duty to refrain from willfully and unlawfully selling or furnishing alcohol to underage patrons. (R.44, p. 26) According to the claimants, TIFFANY'S breached these duties by:

- a) failing to have adequate security;
- b) having improper and inadequate crowd control;
- c) having improper and inadequate crowd security;
- d) having improper and inadequate crowd control policies;
- e) selling or furnishing alcohol to minors.

(R.44, pp. 26-27) According to the claimants, as a result of "one or more" Of these breaches, the claimants suffered injury. (R.44, p. 26)

SCOTTSDALE defended TIFFANY'S under a reservation of rights and settled the claimants' claims. (R.44, p. 7) Because SCOTTSDALE concluded that the underlying Complaint by claimant Frances contained allegations of both premises and liquor liability, SCOTTSDALE notified ILLINOIS about the claim. (R.44, p. 30) According to SCOTTSDALE'S Complaint, ILLINOIS breached its duty to defend TIFFANY'S and further breached its duty to investigate the claim. (R.44, p. 6)

After settling the claims with all four claimants, SCOTTSDALE brought the instant suit against ILLINOIS seeking a declaration that it was entitled to reimbursement of sums expended in defending and settling liquor liability claims on behalf of TIFFANY'S. (R.44, pp. 1~41)' Both parties moved far summary judgment. (R.44, pp. 47-51, 65-83) SCOTTSDALE submitted the underlying Complaint, insurance policies, discovery and correspondence between the two insurers in support of its Motion. (R.44, pp. 84-141) SCOTTSDALE argued that since the Complaint alleged facts falling within both insurers' coverage, ILLINOIS had a

¹ SCOTTSDALE'S original Complaint contained claims far Breach Of Contract, Indemnification and Subrogation. That Complaint was dismissed and SCOTTSDALE'S amended Complaint contained only a single claim for declaratory relief. (R.44, pp. 1-41)

duty to defend and a duty to indemnify their mutual insured. (R.44, pp. 67-69) Since ILLINOIS had declined to do so when requested by SCOTTSDALE, ILLINOIS had, according to SCOTTSDALE, no defense to this declaratory action, (R.44, pp. 71-72) Finally, SCOTTSDALE argued that once ILLINOIS declined to defend or indemnify its insured, it lost the ability to demonstrate that the actual facts surrounding the subject incident fell outside its coverage. (R.44, p. 73)

ILLINOIS posited that even assuming that it had a duty to defend the mutual insured simply because the claimants had been served alcohol at TIFFANY'S, there was no evidence that alcohol played any factor in the incidents such that it would have had a duty to indemnify the insured. (R.44, p. 50) Furthermore, ILLINOIS argued, under the Third District Court of Appeals' decision in Argonaut Ins. Co. v. Maryland Casualty Co., 372 So. 2d 960 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979), since both insurers indisputably had separate, independent duties to defend the insured in this case, SCOTTSDALE could not recover any percentage of its defense costs from ILLINOIS as under general subrogation principles, it had incurred liability over and above what it independently owed to its insured. (R.44, p. 169)

After a hearing, Judge Thomas **S.** Wilson granted SCOTTSDALE'S Motion for Summary Judgment, finding that ILLINOIS owed SCOTTSDALE reimbursement for its proportionate share of the defense and indemnification costs. (R.44, **pp.** 142-177) A timely Notice of Appeal was filed from this non-final order determining liability in favor of SCOTTSDALE and against ILLINOIS. (R.44, pp. 175-177)

The Third District Court of Appeal issued its decision on August 14, 1996. (R.105-110) The appellate court determined that ILLINOIS owed SCOTTSDALE 50% of SCOTTSDALE'S defense costs but remanded the case to the trial court, finding that there were genuine issues of material fact precluding summary judgment on the issue of whether ILLINOIS actually had coverage for the underlying claim, (R.105-110) The decision made no mention of the appellate court's own Argonaut decision. (R.105-110)

After ILLINOIS moved for Rehearing and/or Clarification and Rehearing En Banc, the Third District issued a Corrected Opinion on September 11, 1996, which made only minor changes to the facts contained in the opinion. (R.111-118, 119-138, 149, 150-155)
Thereafter, ILLINOIS filed its Notice of Invoke this Court's Discretionary Jurisdiction and the parties filed Jurisdictional Briefs on the issue of whether the appellate court's decision was in conflict with the Fifth District Court of Appeal's en banc decision in Continental Casualty Co. v. United Pacific Ins. co., 637 So. 2d 270 (Fla. 5th DCA 1994), in which that court adopted the rationale of Argonaut as its own. (R.157-158) This Court accepted conflict jurisdiction over this case on February 18, 1997. (R.159)

POINTS ON APPEAL

The Trial and Appellate courts erred in contrmining that ILLINOIS was obliged to ribute to SCOTTSDALE'S defense costs given that SCOTTSDALE had a separate, independent duty to defend the mutual insured and was therefore not entitled to recover any portion of its defense costs under general subrogation principles as espoused in Continental Casualty Co. v. United Pacific Ins. Co.

II. Even if the lower courts did not err in concluding that SCOTTSDALE was entitled to recover a portion of its defense costs exaended on behalf of the mutual insured. the courts erred in presuming that SCOTTSDALE was entitled to recover 50% of those costs in light of the fact that SCOTTSDALE 'S pro rata share of those costs exceeded ILLINOIS' and in light of the fact that of the five (5) cocontained in the Complaint. only one (1) of those counts was arauably covered under ILLINOIS' policy.

remanding the case to the trial court on the issue of whether SC E was entitled to summary judgment in its favor on coveracre; the Record reflects that there is no evidence supporting acottspace for the insured's claim and both parties admitted that further discovery was unlikely to unearth any further evidence n support of SCOTTSDALE'S claim.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The lower tribunals erred in determining that ILLINOIS was obligated to contribute to SCOTTSDALE'S defense costs since SCOTTSDALE had its own independent duty to defend the mutual insured TIFFANY'S and therefore, was not providing a benefit to TIFFANY'S which it was not already contractually bound to provide, The appellate court's attempt to analogize this case to those in which an excess carrier provides a primary defense to the insured when the insured's primary carrier wrongfully refuses to do so, must fail as in those cases, the excess carrier does not have the initial duty to defend and therefore, it is rendering a service to the insured over and above what is required by its contract. Therefore, under general subrogation principles, SCOTTSDALE had no claim for equitable subrogation and summary judgment should have been rendered in ILLINOIS' favor.

The lower courts also erred in determining, without explanation, that ILLINOIS owed SCOTTSDALE 50% of its defense costs.

ILLINOIS' policy contains a "pro rata" "other insurance" clause while SCOTTSDALE'S policy contains no "other insurance" clause. If ILLINOIS is bound to contribute to the mutual insured's defense costs, it should only be required to do so on a "pro rata", rather than equal, basis.

Finally, the appellate court erred in remanding the case, on the grounds that there remain genuine issues of material fact with respect to ILLINOIS' duty to contribute to SCOTTSDALE'S settlement. As the appellate court recognized, SCOTTSDALE had no evidence to Sustain its contention that the loss in question arose out of a covered loss under ILLINOIS policy. In light of the fact that the incident occurred

almost ten (10) years ago and in light of SCOTTSDALE'S own explicit admission that there were no genuine issues of material fact remaining to be litigated and its tacit admission, in response to ILLINOIS' Motion for Rehearing, that there were no material facts remaining to be discovered, the appellate court should have simply reversed the trial court's summary judgment compelling ILLINOIS' contribution to the settlement, rather than remanding that issue for further proceedings.

ARGUMENT

I. The Trial and Appellate courts erred in determining that ILLINOIS was obliged to contribute to SCOTTSDALE'S defense costs given that SCOTTSDALE had a separate. independent duty to defend the mutual insured and was therefore not entitled to recover any portion of its defense costs under general subrogation principles as espoused in Continental Casualty Co. v. United Pacific Ins. co.

This case poses the question of whether, where two insurance policies arguably cover the same claim and only one insurer defends the mutual insured, the defending insurer is entitled to recover a portion of its defense costs from the non-defending insurer under the principle of equitable subrogation. The Third District Court of Appeals' decision in this case, holding that the defending insurer may so recover, inexplicably failed to address the only two (2) Florida cases directly on point, Continental Casualty Co. v. United Pacific I-1 637 so 2d 270 (Fla. 5th DCA 1994)(en banc) and Argonaut Ins. CO. v. Maryland Casualty Co., 372 So. 2d 960 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979), both of which have held to the contrary. ILLINOIS moved for Rehearing En Banc in an effort to have the appellate court articulate why it felt that neither case governed the issue, but the Court declined to do so, thereby necessitating Supreme Court review.

SCOTTSDALE'S policy provided primary coverage to TIFFANY'S for premises liability claims. ILLINOIS' policy provided primary coverage to TIFFANY'S for liquor liability claims. The underlying Complaint alleged, in pertinent part, that TIFFANY'S owed a duty to the claimants to exercise reasonable care to maintain its premises in a reasonably

safe manner, including policing the premises to protect its patrons from assaults by other patrons. (R.44, pp. 25-26) The Complaint further alleged that TIFFANY'S had an obligation and a duty to refrain from willfully and unlawfully selling or furnishing alcohol to underage patrons. (R.44, p. 26) According to the claimants, TIFFANY'S breached these duties by:

- a) failing to have adequate security;
- b) having improper and inadequate crowd control:
- c) having improper and inadequate crowd security;
- d) having improper and inadequate crowd control policies:
- e) selling or furnishing alcohol to minors.

(R.44, pp. 26-27) According to the claimants, as a result of "one or more" of these breaches, the claimants suffered injury. (R.44, p. 26) ILLINOIS denied coverage on the grounds that the Complaint did not state claim for liquor liability and accordingly, ILLINOIS refused SCOTTSDALE'S requests to contribute to its defense and indemnification costs. After settling the claims against the mutual insured, SCOTTSDALE brought this suit for equitable subrogation against ILLINOIS, seeking reimbursement for an unspecified portion of its defense and indemnification expenditures.

At the time of the trial court's summary judgment in SCOTTSDALE'S favor, the law in Florida was well settled that where two carriers have primary duties to defend on the same claim, the carrier who defends the claim has no right of subrogation from the non-defending insurer. Continental Casualty, 637 So. 2d 270; Argonaut, 372 so. 2d 960. The underlying rationale of both cases is that each

carrier owed the insured a separate, independent duty to defend and that duty runs only to the insured; not to another carrier, who is a stranger to the contract.

In an apparent effort to avoid these cases, the Third District opined:

Since Scottsdale's policy excluded liquor liability and since Illinois' policy specifically claims, covered liquor liability claims, Illinois was the primary insurer on the negligence claim Scottsdale was the excess insurer. 'The fact that a carrier which is secondarily liable also had a duty to defend the insured does not deprive the carrier of its right to be indemnified for the cost of defending the insured.' United States Auto, Ass'n v Hartford Ins. Co,, 468 So. 2d 545 (Fla. 5th DCA), <u>rev. denied</u>, 476 So. 2d 676 (Fla. 1985); **see** also. Associated Elect. & Gas Ins. Servs., Ltd. v. Ranger Ins Co. 560 So 2d 242 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990). Accordingly, Scbttsdale'is entitled to half of the attorney's fees and costs that it incurred while defending Tiffany's.

(R.153) Thus, in an effort to distinguish this case from **Continental** and **Argonaut**, the appellate court mistakenly treated this case as one involving primary and excess insurers while the opinion itself revealed that both carriers provided primary coverage to the mutual insured and that their coverages were mutually exclusive of one another. As a result, the cases relied upon by the Court in reaching its decision that ILLINOIS owed SCOTTSDALE reimbursement for a portion of its defense costs are all distinguishable and this opinion is in direct conflict with the Fifth District's en **banc** decision in **Continental Casualty**, which was based upon the Third District's own decision in **Argonaut**.

In <u>Continental</u>, the Fifth District Court of Appeal issued an <u>en_banc</u> decision holding that an insurer is not entitled, pursuant to equitable subrogation or contribution, to recover from another insurer the costs of defending their mutual insured because the duty to defend an insured is personal and does not inure to the benefit of another insurer. <u>Id.</u>, 637 So. 2d 270. As in the present case, both carriers, Continental Casualty Company and United Pacific Insurance Company, provided primary coverage to their mutual insured, but only Continental provided a defense to a claim covered under both policies. <u>Id.</u> United Pacific ultimately contributed equally to the settlement of the claim, but refused to contribute to Continental's defense costs. Id, United obtained a summary judgment in its favor on Continental's claim for equitable subrogation. <u>Id.</u>

The Fifth District affirmed that summary judgment, adopting as its own the rationale of the Third District in **Argonaut**. The **Argonaut** court, in turn, relied upon a 1955 California case as the basis for its decision:

While the fact that here both companies in their policies agree to defend the assured bears some analogy to the situation where both companies have agreed to indemnify the assured against a total loss, nevertheless the agreement to defend is not only completely independent of and severable from the indemnity provision of the policy, but is completely different. Indemnity contemplates merely the payment of money. The agreement to defend contemplates the rendering of services. The insurer must investigate, and conduct defense, and may if it deems it expedient, negotiate and make a settlement of the suit. These matters each insurer is required to do regardless of what the other insurer is doing. While both may join together in the services and share expenses, there is no requirement that they do Conceivably, one might disagree with the other

as to the strategy of the investigation and defense. It could act independently of the other. Thus the relationship is more that of coinsurer than cosurety. As to the assured, neither one is excused to any extent from its full duty to defend, no matter what the other does, The duty to defend is personal to the particular insurer. It is not entitled to divide that duty with or require contribution from the other.

Araonaut, 372 So. 2d at 963, quoting Financial Indemnity Co. V. Colonial Ins. Co., 281 P. 2d 883 (Cal. App. 1955). With respect to Continental's argument that such a policy would encourage insurer's to "shirk" their duty to defend, the Continental panel once again looked to the reasoning of Argonaut by quoting:

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