IN THE SUPREME COURT, STATE OF FLORIDA SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 89,124 THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CASE NO. : 96-842

ILLINOIS INSURANCE EXCHANGE, an Illinois Corporation and BRITAMCO UNDERWRITERS, INC., and Illinois Corporation,

Petitioners,

vs.

FILED SID J. WHITE APR 14 1997

CLERK, SUPREME COURT Chief Deputy Ckrk

SCOTTSDALE INSURANCE COMPANY a/s/o GAMEL PROPERTIES, INC., d/b/a CARILLON RESORT and TIFFANY'S and CARYLANN HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. d/b/a CARILLON RESORT and TIFFANY'S,

Respondents.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

RILEY & KNOERR Attorneys for Respondent 700 Southeast Third Avenue Suite 401 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 (954) 524-1888 (Broward)

JACQUELINE G. EMANUEL

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Trial and Appellate courts correctly determined that ILLINOIS had a primary duty to defend TIFFANY'S for the covered claim for liquor liability and under the Doctrine of Equitable Subrogation, must reimburse SCOTTSDALE for half of their defense costs and fees incurred because SCOTTSDALE did not insure TIFFANY'S for liquor liability. A determination of whether a duty to defend exists is restricted to a review of the four corners of the Complaint, alleging the claim against the insured. Clearly, the allegations against TIFFANY'S in the underlying action were based upon premises liability and liquor liability. The Complaint alleged that TIFFANY'S owed the Plaintiff's the duty to maintain the premises in a safe condition and to guard against known and foreseeable dangers and to refrain from willfully and unlawfully selling alcohol to minors, The Complaint further alleged that TIFFANY'S breached these duties which resulted in the injuries alleged. (R. 44, pp. 25-28).

It is clear from reviewing the underlying Complaint, that there are not five Counts in the Complaint, but rather two. Each Count is framed against different owner entities of the bar, but otherwise are identical and allege equally, premises liability and liquor liability allegations.

Although ILLINOIS now claims a coverage defense to the underlying Complaint, ILLINOIS failed to perfect a coverage defense pursuant to Florida Statute S627.426, which requires an insurer to notify the insured within certain time parameters as to any coverage defenses and that failure to do so, bars that coverage defense in the future. It is undisputed that ILLINOIS owed TIFFANY'S a duty of defense for any liquor liability claims being made against it. ILLINOIS'S coverage defense that alcohol did not cause the injures was not properly and timely raised and therefore, ILLINOIS is now barred by raising such a defense.

Although SCOTTSDALE owed an individual duty to defend TIFFANY'S under it's own policy for general premises liability, it did not owe TIFFANY'S a duty to indemnify excluded claims, i.e., the liquor liability claim. Further, SCOTTSDALE, in order to protect it's insured, TIFFANY'S, defended all claims, including the uncovered claim for liquor liability. SCOTTSDALE stepped in to defend the liquor liability claim, although it had no coverage to indemnify this claim, in the place of ILLINOIS, who did owe the duty and indemnity and therefore, under the principals of Equitable Subrogation, is entitled to be reimbursed a proportionate share of the expenses incurred and settlements paid.

Under the principal of Equitable Subrogation, SCOTTSDALE, in essence, was the excess insurer on the liquor liability claim, where ILLINOIS was the primary insurer, and SCOTTSDALE, therefore, is entitled to be afforded relief for paying a legal obligation which ought to have been met either wholly or partially by

ILLINOIS. Florida Courts clearly uphold reimbursement of attorneys fees and costs where the insurers are in an excess/primary or primary/secondary relationship and the excess or secondary carrier indemnifies the insured in the stead of the primary insurer.

ARGUMENT

I. The Trial and Appellate courts correctly determined that Illinois had a primary duty to defend the mutual insured for the covered claim for liquor liability and under the. Doctrine of Equitable Subrogation, must pay half of the defense costs incurred by Scottsdale, which defended all claims, including the liquor liability claim excluded by Scottsdale's policy.

Contrary to Petitioner's argument, this case does not pose a question involving insurers who cover the same claim. It is precisely the contrary factual situation at bar wherein ILLINOIS insured TIFFANY'S for liquor liability only and SCOTTSDALE insured TIFFANY'S for premises liability only. SCOTTSDALE'S policy furthermore had a clear exclusion for liquor liability claims. Therefore, these insurers did not cover the same claim, did not have concurrent coverage, and did not insure the same risks. The two cases relied upon by the Petitioner are not on point and are distinguishable. In both Continental Casualty Company v. United Pacific Insurance Company, supra, and Argonaut Insurance Company v. Maryland Casualty Company, supra, the insurers insured their mutual insured for the same risk. Under that factual scenario, the Fifth and Third District Courts of Appeal held that the insurers were not entitled to contribution of defense costs.

The line of cases cited and relied upon by Respondent in the Appellate action, support the Trial court and Third District Court of Appeals' rulings that SCOTTSDALE is entitled to equitable subrogation from ILLINOIS. Equitable subrogation arises by operation of law and is determined by weighing the equities between

the parties. Equitable subrogation is the appropriate form of relief in a dispute between a primary and excess insurer arising from payment of a claim by the excess insurer. Phoenix Insurance form an. Florida Farm Bureau Mutual Insurance Company, 558 So.2d 1048 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1990). In Phoenix Insurance Company v. Florida Farm Bureau Mutual Insurance Company, supra, the facts are similar to the case at bar. In Phoenix Insurance Company, supra, the insured had two insurance policies, one with PHOENIX under a homeowner's policy and another with FLORIDA FARM BUREAU under a commercial farm policy. The PHOENIX Court stated that in that somewhat unusual case of dual primary coverage, both insurers had a duty to defend the insured, which required the insurers to investigate the facts and make a good faith offer to settle if a prudent man would do so. The court further held that in that case, a primary/excess relationship existed between the two insurers where the excess insurer stood in the shoes of the insured in regard to this duty. As in the PHOENIX case, SCOTTSDALE defended TIFFANY'S and pursued a good faith settlement. ILLINOIS refused to undertake the defense, failed to notify TIFFANY'S of any coverage defenses, and forced SCOTTSDALE to defend the entire action, including non-covered claims, and to settle with the claimants in protecting it's insured.

Petitioner argues in it's Brief that ILLINOIS denied coverage on the grounds that the Complaint did not state a claim for liquor liability, and accordingly, refused SCOTTSDALE'S request to contribute to the defense and indemnification costs. A liability

insurer's duty to defend is distinct from and broader than a duty to indemnify an insured against damages assessed, so that if a Complaint alleges facts showing two or more grounds for liability, one being within insurance coverage and the other not, the insurer is obligated to defend the entire suit. Baron Oil Company v. Nationwide Mutual Fire Insurance Company, 470 So.2d 810 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985). Clearly, the underlying Complaint alleged facts showing grounds for liquor liability and ILLINOIS owed a duty to defend the action. ILLINOIS could have brought a Declaratory Judgment Action to determine it's obligation to defend TIFFANY'S, but failed to do so.

ILLINOIS argues in it's Brief that the law in Florida is well settled that where two carriers have primary duties to defend on the same claim, the carrier who defends the claim has no right of subrogation from the non-defending insurer, citing Continental supra, and Argonaut, supra. This is exactly the Casualty, distinction between the cases relied upon by Petitioner and the case at bar. ILLINOIS and SCOTTSDALE do not have primary duties to defend the same claim. They each owed a primary duty to defend separate and distinct claims. Therefore, Continental Casualty, supra and Argonaut, supra, are not persuasive nor on point. Clearly, the Third District Court of Appeal's opinion in the within action is not in direct conflict with Continental Casualty, supra, and Argonaut, supra, as SCOTTSDALE and ILLINOIS, did not insure the same claim.

The <u>Continental Casualty Company</u> court further recognized and acknowledged that there is a substantial divergence of views on this issue and that the trend may be to the contrary of that set forth therein.

The <u>Continental</u> court acknowledged the Equitable Subrogation Doctrine and recognized that courts have theorized that the imposition of a duty to contribute to the cost of defense will discourage insurers who are not concerned with their obligations to their **insureds** from "lagging behind" and "shirking" their duty to defend in the hope that the other primary insurer will defend and relieve them of the expense. Not only did ILLINOIS fail to defend it's insured, it failed and refused to comply with Florida Statute S627.426 and failed to notify TIFFANY'S of any coverage defense or, at the minimum, to reserve it's rights.

Contrary to the facts in <u>Continental</u>, supra, ILLINOIS was put on notice of the claim covered under it's policy immediately upon notice of the suit. However, ILLINOIS continued to refuse to defend or even to investigate the claim on behalf of it's insured. A lengthy dissent is contained within the <u>Continental Casualty</u>, opinion, which even supports Equitable Subrogation and contribution between insurers who insured the same risk.

The policy behind the Doctrine of Equitable Subrogation is to prevent unjust enrichment by assuring that a **person**, who in equity and good conscience is responsible for a debt, is ultimately

answerable for it's discharge. <u>Kala Investments, Inc. v. Sklar</u>, 538 **So.2d** 909 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1989). See also <u>American Home</u>

<u>Assurance Company v. City of Opa Locka</u>, 368 **So.2d** 416 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1979).

The fact that a carrier, which is secondarily liability, also had a duty to defend an insured, does not deprive such a carrier of it's right to be indemnified by the primary insurer for the cost of defending the insured. <u>United States Automobile Association v. Hartford Insurance Company</u>, 468 So.2d 545 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985); American and Foreign Insurance Co. v. Avis Rent-A-Car System, Inc., 401 So.2d 855 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981). In <u>United State Automobile Association</u>, supra, the court held that where two policies provided liability coverage for the negligent operator of a boat and one policy contained a pro-rata clause, and the other contained excess insurance clause, effect would be given to the excess insurance clause, placing the two insurers in a primary/ excess capacity.

In the case at bar, SCOTTSDALE excluded liquor liability coverage therefore, clearly stands in the shoes of an excess insurer with regard to the defense costs incurred and settlement payments made on behalf of ILLINOIS for the liquor liability claim. (R. 44, p, 18).

The Third District Court of Appeal did not decline to address Continental, supra, or Argonaut, supra, and clearly cited the case law upon which it relied in reaching it's decision. The Third District Court of Appeal previously has upheld reimbursement of

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, 490 So.2d 1022 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1986), the Third District Court of Appeal held that the excess insurer was entitled to reasonable attorneys fees and reimbursement for costs incurred in defending negligence actions brought against the mutual insured, and in bringing the Declaratory Judgment action.

ILLINOIS takes the untenable position that it did not have a duty to defend the insured, because the Complaint did not state a claim for liquor liability. Not only does the underlying Complaint allege that the claimants were minors who were served alcohol by TIFFANY'S, it further claims that TIFFANY'S duty to refrain from wilfully and unlawfully selling or furnishing alcoholic beverages to persons who were not of lawful drinking age, directly and proximately resulted in the injuries claimed by the Plaintiffs. There is a clear claim of resulting injury and therefore it -is unquestionable that ILLINOIS had a duty to defend TIFFANY'S in the underlying action.

ILLINOIS admits in it's Brief that, where a primary insurer abandons it's insured and fails to defend covered claims, the excess carrier is entitled to recoup those expenditures from the insurer who had the sole obligation to defend the insured. ILLINOIS clearly abandoned TIFFANY'S in this action and SCOTTSDALE, in it's effort to protect it's insured, defended all claims, including the excluded claims, and reached a good faith settlement of the claims against it's insured. ILLINOIS had the sole duty to

provide a primary defense to the liquor liability claim, as it was the only insured claim under ILLINOIS' policy with TIFFANY'S and therefore, SCOTTSDALE is rightfully entitled to recoup 50% of it's defense costs based upon ILLINOIS' abandonment of TIFFANY'S,

Interestingly, ILLINOIS acknowledges the fact that insurers have significant incentives to comply with their contractual obligations by virtue of statutory and contractual remedies provided to the insured, TIFFANY'S herein. TIFFANY'S was a named Plaintiff in this action as well, and ILLINOIS* blatant refusal to defend or investigate the claim is exactly the danger recognized by the Continental court.

Petitioner cites a multitude of holdings in cases in foreign jurisdictions which do not bind this court.

The glaring deficiency in Petitioner's position is that a well established line of Florida cases uphold reimbursement of defense costs where two carriers do not provide concurrent coverage or insure the same risks. The Third District Court of Appeal's opinion affirming the Trial court's Order granting Summary Judgment on ILLINOIS' duty to reimburse SCOTTSDALE for 50% of it's defense attorneys fees and costs is supported by Florida law and the Principals of Equitable Subrogation. It is respectfully submitted that, in light of the foregoing, this court should approve the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in this case and distinguish the Continental and Argonaut cases on their facts.

11. The Trial and Appellate courts correctly determined that Illinois owed 50% reimbursement to Scottsdale for defense costs incurred; there were two, not five, Counts in the Complaint; Illinois and Scottsdale did not provide concurrent coverage nor insure the same risk to the mutual insured whereby pro-rata does not apply.

SCOTTSDALE, in it's Complaint for Declaratory Relief and it's Motion for Summary Judgment at the Trial level, sought recovery of 50% of the defense attorneys fees and costs as well as 50% of the settlement amounts paid to the claimants from ILLINOIS. This was based on the fact that there were two claims against TIFFANY'S, one for premises liability and one for liquor liability. Petitioners suggestion that the appropriate measure of recovery should be prorata rather than equal has no basis in law or equity.

ILLINOIS' position that insurers with differing amounts of insurance covering the mutual insured are measured on a pro-rata basis does not apply here. Because SCOTTSDALE and ILLINOIS did not insure TIFFANY'S for the same risk or coverage, pro-rata reimbursement is inapplicable.

ILLINOIS takes a quantum leap in it's Brief in concluding that indemnity is to be allocated on a pro-rata basis and that therefore, defense costs should likewise be apportioned in accordance with the formula simply because ILLINOIS' policy contains a pro-rata "other insurance" clause. However, the "other insurance" clause contained in ILLINOIS' policy provides as follows:

"6. Other insurance: The insurance afforded by this policy is primary insurance, except when stated to apply in excess of or contingent upon the absence of other

insurance. When this insurance is primary and the insured has other insurance, which is stated to be applicable to the loss on an excess or contingent basis, the amount of the company's liability, under this policy, shall not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance.

When both this insurance and other insurance apply to the loss on the same basis, whether primary, excess or contingent, the company shall not be liable under this policy for a greater proportion of the loss than that stated in the applicable contribution provision below:

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